### Management Plan for

### The Western Ave. Apartment Communities

Located at: 13126 Western Ave. Gardena

### **Table of Contents**

1.0	Executive Summary	3
	1.1 Objectives	3
	1.2 Mission	3
	1.3 Keys to Success	3
2.0	Company Summary	3
	2.1 Company Ownership	4
	2.2 Company Locations and Facilities	4
3.0	Management Operations	4
	3.1 Management Team	4
	3.2 Leasing	4
	3.2.1 Leasing Process	5
	3.2.2 Leasing Documents -Sample	5
	3.2.2.1 Application	6
	3.2.2.2 Lease	7
	3.2.2.3 Rules and Regulations	10
	3.2.2.4 Addendums	14
	3.2.3 Leasing Timeframe / Vacancy	14
	3.3 Rental Prices	14
	3.4 Maintenance and Repairs	14
	3.5 Accounting	15
4.0	Services/Amenities	. 15
	4.1 Leasing/Management Office	15
	4.1.1 Rent Payment Conveniences	15
	4.2 Unit Features	15
	4.3 Disability Access	15
	4.4 Business Center	16
	4.5 Internet Access	16
	4.6 Safety Features	16
	4.6.1 Gated Access	16
	4.6.2 Security Cameras	16
	4.6.3 Electronic Apartment Keys	16
	4.7 Gym	16
5.0	Marketing	. 16
J	5.1 Website and Building Signage	17
	5.2 Local and Southern California Advertising	17
	5.3 National Advertising	17
	5.4. Open House	17

#### 1.0 Executive Summary

The RFLA eFund I, LLC (which shall be referred to as RFLA) has been formed for the purpose of the development and management of 121 units within one apartment building located at 13126 Western Ave. in Gardena, CA. RFLA will be providing for apartments at marketrate rents. By being involved in each step of the way from development to rental, we at RFLA can ensure our customers that they are receiving the highest quality living. Will be providing high quality housing that offers both up-to-date technological amenities as well as state-of-the-art living conditions at affordable rental rates. At this time, the building will be referred to as "Western Ave. Apartments." Western Ave. Apartments will foster an atmosphere and a quality of life that is of the highest standards. Customer satisfaction, safety and an overall healthy working relationship are our main goals at RFLA.

### 1.1 Objectives

1. Provide reasonably priced rental housing units in an area with a lack of newly built affordable priced apartments.

### 1.2 Mission

Western Ave. Apartments will provide high-quality, comfortable rental apartments in Gardena. Our apartments will offer state-of-the-art architectural design and living conditions reflective of today's technology and a growing need for quality housing in the area. Our company is dedicated to a hassle-free living environment in which our tenants can enjoy all the benefits of safe, attractive, and inviting units. Unlike many other real estate companies that are solely concerned with turning profits, RFLA is to maintain the highest level of customer satisfaction that is achievable. Tenant safety, happiness, and comfort are extremely important to our operations.

Western Ave. Apartments is being built to compliment the local area in three main aspects: design, usability, and functionality. The apartments are designed to be priced at market rent rates. Within the company, we have strived to work as a cohesive, harmonious unit focused on exemplifying our mission. Just as customer satisfaction is an intricate part of RFLA's success, so is employee satisfaction. That is why the founders of RFLA believe that employee satisfaction will make the company a success and will be the key to their longevity.

### 1.3 Keys to Success

- 1. Safe, quality housing that provides state-of-the-art amenities at competitive prices.
- 2. Maintaining open communication between RFLA and its residents to ensure the highest level of customer satisfaction and long lasting reputation within the community.
- 3. Experienced staff with professional leasing and management experience.

### 2.0 Company Summary

RFLA has been formed for the development and management of the apartments at 13126 Western Ave. Primary experience and expertise has been in the development of high-quality, urban infill projects such as condos, apartments and mixed-use buildings. Its members have years of experience in all aspects of real estate.

### 2.1 Company Ownership

RFLA has been created as a Limited Liability Corporation. It will be owned by its investors who are also the Developers of the project. Their intention is for long-term holding and managing of the Western Ave. Apartments.

### 2.2 Company Locations and Facilities

RFLA will lease and manage the apartments from a leasing office located within the building during business hours. This office will also be available for maintenance, janitorial and repair service staff during business hours and we expect to have a minimum of one live-in manager on the premises. For after-hours emergencies, we will have a 24-hour phone number to call in addition to the live-in manager.

### 3.0 Management Operations

Management of operations will focus on 4 main areas:

- 1. Leasing.
- 2. Maintenance and repair (including emergencies).
- 3. Accounting of all business operations.
- 4. Security of tenants and property.

#### 3.1 Management Team

The management team will be mostly departmentalized. Employees are delegated tasks based upon their specialty. Initial staff will include members already integrated with RFLA as well as additional staff with appropriate experience. At RFLA, we prefer to hire staff rather than outsource to ensure that our customer service and quality of work remains consistent with RFLA's mission.

The initial expected staffing is as follows:

- -2 full-time managers: Job responsibilities include managing operations, overseeing staff, overseeing advertising and accounting. Responsibilities may also include some after-hours emergency calls if needed.
- -2 part-time leasing agents: Job responsibilities will be leasing of the residential units. This includes follow-up on advertising, communications with prospective tenants, apartment showings, processing of paperwork and tenant move-ins.
- -1 part-time maintenance technician: Job responsibilities will include all in-house maintenance and repair issues including after-hour emergency calls. Job responsibilities may also overlap with janitorial staff.
- -1 part-time janitorial personnel: Job responsibilities will include weekly cleaning and maintenance. Job responsibilities may overlap with the maintenance technician and may also include after-hours emergencies.
- -In addition to our regular staff, there may be occasion to use trained temp-staffing to fill in any gap or emergency that may arise.

### 3.2 Leasing

The leasing of the apartments will be performed in a manner that is professional, consistent with our customer service objectives and in accordance with all local, state and federal guidelines. At RFLA, we have a vested interest

in creating and maintaining a relationship with our residents. We want to provide great apartments with great customer service. This includes making the leasing process as hassle-free as possible.

### 3.2.1 Leasing Process

Western Ave. Apartments will be leased to market rate rental residents. The process for leasing an apartment will include the following steps:

- An application must be completed to determine credit worthiness, income eligibility, and rental
  history. At RFLA, we are experienced in processing this type of information quickly and efficiently.
  We also understand the importance of protecting an individual's privacy and personal information. Only
  limited authorized staff or auditors will have access to sensitive personal information of applicants and
  tenants.
- After eligibility is approved and verified with the appropriate backup documents, we
  will sign a lease for the specific apartment to be rented. The minimum lease term shall
  be 30 days. At the time of lease signing we shall collect the first month's rent and an applicable security
  deposit.
- 3. If an applicant is denied based on credit or eligibility requirements they shall receive a written notice of such denial.
- 4. Once a lease is signed then the new tenant receives copies of the signed lease, rules and regulations, Gym rules and a packet of helpful information regarding the building and the local area. Move in is scheduled for all new tenants so as not to conflict with other move-ins.

### 3.2.2 Leasing Documents

The leasing documents are generally composed of the following items:

- 1. Application
- 2. Lease
- 3. Rules and Regulations
- 4. Addendums

### 3.2.2.1 Application- Sample

Western AVE. APARTMENT RENTAL APPLICATION

OCCUPANT								
Name	NameCoApplicant/Guarantor							
Driver's License No	Social Security	No	DOB_					
Driver's License No Phone: Home	Cell	Email						
EMPLOYMENT HISTORY								
Current Employer								
Address	C	ity	State	Zip				
Supervisor Gross Monthly Salary		Phone						
Gross Monthly Salary		Position	How	long?				
Other income sources		other gross monthl	y income					
Co-applicant/Guarantor's	Employer							
Address	C	ity	State	Zip				
Supervisor Gross Monthly Salary		Phone						
Gross Monthly Salary		Position	How	long?				
Other income sources		_other gross monthl	y income					
RENTAL HISTORY								
Present Address	Ci	ty	State	Zip				
Rent Own	Rental/Mortgage Amou	nt Paid Monthly	Fron	n/To				
Reason for leaving		-						
Landlord's Name/Mortga	ge Co.	Phon	e #					
Landlord's Name/Mortga Previous Address	Ci	ty	State	Zip				
RentOwn	_Rental/Mortgage Amou	nt Paid Monthly	From,	/To				
Reason for leaving								
Landlord's Name/Mortga BANKING REFERENCE	ge Co	Phon	e #					
Name		Phor	ne#					
Address	(	itv	State	7in				
AddressAccount #	Checking	Savings						
OTHER INFORMATION:		Javiligs	Balance					
In the past have you failed	d to perform any obligati	on of a rental agreen	nent or have	e you been a defendant				
in an eviction lawsuit?	, , ,	J		,				
If yes. Explain  Any nets(describe)								
Any pets(describe)				-				
In case of emergency not	ify	relationship_						
phone	_							
The information on this ap	pplication is true and cor	rect to the best of my	y knowledge	e. I hereby authorize				
RFLA or its agents to verify the above information and obtain either a consumer or investigative credit								
report from Contemporary Information Corp. I understand that the \$ fee for verifying this rental								
application is not a deposit, will not be applied to any rent, or refunded even if the application to rent is								
declined.								
Signature		Date						
Signature		Date						

### 3.2.2.2 Lease-Sample

The lease terms and conditions may be changed and updated from	n time to time.						
Residential Lease							
to <u>TE</u>	hires and takes the premises (as defined below) for the term specified subject to all of the terms and provisions						
1. Premises: The premises here leased are situated at Gardena, CA .	Western Ave. APT						
2. <b>(a)</b> <u>Term.</u> The term of this Agreement shall be for a <u>Lease Starts</u> . Any permitted holding over, with the permission month-to-month tenancy, terminable at any time thereafter b	•						
(b) <u>Notices</u> . The notices provided for herein or required shall be served upon the Lessor, by certified mail or by delivering a such other place as Lessor shall from time to time designate to Lesson	copy thereof to Lessor at Leasing Office, or to						
3. Rent. The rent for the premises shall be the sum of Monthly rent in dollars (\$ ) per month, which rent Lessee hereby agrees to pay at the office of Lessor or at such other places as Lessor may from time to time designate. Lessee expressly agrees to pay said rent each month in advance. If the term of this agreement commences on any day other than the first day of the calendar rent, the rent for the second month shall be prorated to the first day of the calendar month and all monthly installments of rent payable by Lessee shall thereafter be paid in advance on the first day of each calendar month during the term.							
(a) All rental payments received after the third (3rd) day of \$50.00. However, any payment not received by the first day from Notice.							
(b) Any returned check for any reason whatsoever shall (\$20.00) Dollars.	be subject to a returned check fee of Twenty						
(c) If the Lessor for any reason cannot deliver possessic commencement of said term, the Lessor shall not be liable to Lessor there shall be a proportionate deduction of rent; nor shall this least thereafter; and if for any reason said premises cannot be delivered prior to Lessor's delivery of the premises, declare this lease to be negligible to the Lessee.	ee for any loss or damage resulting therefrom, but e be void or voidable for a period of ten (10) days within said number of days, then Lessee may,						
4. <u>Utilities.</u> Lessee agrees to pay for utilities.							
5. <u>Deposits.</u> In addition to the rent due hereunder, Lessee deposit with Lessor a SECURITY DEPOSIT in the amount of \$ the faithful performance of Lessee's obligation for rent or any dam thereof for which Lessee is responsible hereunder. Lessor may, at h and in addition to any other remedies hereunder, apply such secur repair. In the event that such security deposit shall be applied in an (10) days after demand from Lessor, to deposit with Lessor an amo	Said SECURITY DEPOSIT shall be paid for ages or destruction of the premises or any part his option, repair such damage or destruction, ity deposit towards payment of the costs of such by manner authorized, Lessee agrees within ten						

the amount originally deposited hereunder. Failure to do so shall be a default hereunder. If actual costs of damage exceed the amount of the security deposit, Lessee shall personally pay any excess costs. Lessee shall not apply any portion of this security deposit against unpaid rent. Authorized security deposits shall be accounted for within twenty-one (21) days after termination of residency and return of keys and transmitter(s).

- 6. <u>Use of Premises.</u> Lessee agrees to use the premises solely as a private residence, and that only the following persons and no others shall occupy the premises without the prior written consent of Lessor: The Lessee agrees to use the premises and all common areas made available to Lessee always in accordance with the Rules and Regulations attached hereto or hereinafter promulgated and further agrees not to violate any law or ordinance or any governmental authority with respect to the premises.
- 7. <u>Condition of Premises; Maintenance and Repair; Right of Inspection</u>. Lessee has inspected the premises and hereby accepts the premises in its as is physical condition, agreeing that no statement or representation as to the condition has been made by Lessor. Lessor may, at Lessor's option, and without being under any obligation whatsoever to do so, enter the premises during normal business hours to examine the same, to make such repairs or perform such maintenance as Lessor may deem necessary or desirable, or exhibit the premises to prospective tenants, workmen, or contractors. Lessee agrees to maintain the interior of the premises always during the term hereof in good and clean condition as good as the present condition of premises (reasonable wear and tear excepted) and to return the premises to Lessor in such condition at the end of the term. (but without limitation), Lessee shall pay for any expense, damage or repair condition by the stopping or overflow of waste pipes, bathtubs, water closets, wash basins, disposals, dishwashers or sinks.
- 8. <u>Assignment and Subletting.</u> Lessee agrees, as a condition of continuation of this Agreement, not to sell, assign, transfer, set over, mortgage, hypothecate, or in any manner dispose of this Agreement, its term, or any part of its term, or the premises, in whole or in part, without the written consent of Lessor. In the event Lessor at any time shall give such written consent, it shall not be construed as a waiver of any other written consent above required, or for any other time or for any other reason.
- 9. <u>Furniture and Fixtures.</u> In the event the apartment is all or partially furnished, then all such furniture and fixtures are and shall remain the property of Lessor and Lessee hereby agrees that, in the event of any damage or destruction to such furniture or fixtures during the term of this Agreement (reasonable wear and tear excepted), Lessee will pay promptly, on demand, all costs of repair or replacement of such furniture or fixtures. Lessee shall not remove any of such furniture or fixtures from the premises at any time.
- 10. Pets. Lessee agrees that no pet or pets may be kept in or about the premises without the prior written consent of the Lessor. In the event such consent is granted, it shall apply only to that pet specified. All decisions on pets shall be subject to the discretion of the Lessor and his decision in each case shall be final. In the event consent is given with respect to a pet, such consent may be later withdrawn at any time by the Lessor upon notice to the Lessee whereupon Lessee shall immediately remove the pet permanently from the premises. Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to the premises or to the furniture, furnishing or equipment therein, caused by any pet. Lessee agrees to pay to the Lessor the sum of \$ per month upon receiving consent to have the pet in or about the premises, and an additional security deposit of \$ which sum shall be held by the Lessor as an additional security deposit. Said additional security deposit shall be added to any deposit under Paragraph 5 above; and, upon the expiration of the occupancy, such security deposit may be applied by the Lessor for any purposes permitted under Paragraph 5.
- 11. <u>Alterations and Improvements.</u> Lessee agrees not to make any alteration of, or make or add any improvement of any kind to the premises without obtaining Lessor's written consent in advance, including without limitation, painting, wallpapering, permanent shelving and flooring and changing of locks. All alterations, additions or improvements in and to said premises shall be the property of Lessor and shall remain upon and be surrendered with the premises.

- (a) Lessee shall keep the premises free from any liens arising out of any work performed, materials furnished or obligations incurred by Lessee.
- 12. <u>Damage and Destruction.</u> Lessee hereby indemnifies Lessor against, and agrees to pay on demand, for all reasonable costs of repair or restoration as a result of any damage or destruction to the premises or any part thereof resulting from the willful or negligent act of Lessee (and/or any person on the premises through or under Lessee's direction including without limitation, guests of Lessee). In particular, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Lessee indemnifies Lessor against any damage or destruction resulting from leaving windows open during rains or storms, unnecessary flows of water from pipes, faucets or other sources, failure to turn off electrical appliances or lights when not in use, and littering of the premises or adjoining common areas.

### 13. **Default by Lessee.**

- (a) The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a default hereunder by Lessee: (I) The abandonment of the premises by Lessee; (II) the failure by Lessee to make any payment of rent or additional rent required to be made by Lessee hereunder as and when due; and, (III) the failure by Lessee to observe or perform any of the other provisions of this lease to be observed or performed by Lessee if such failure shall not be cured within three (3) days after notice thereof.
- (b) Whether or not the premises are re-let by Lessor, Lessee shall remain obligated under the lease and shall pay to Lessor, until the end of the term hereof, the amount of rent required to be paid by Lessee hereunder, provided however, that in the event Lessor does re-let the premises, Lessor shall apply the rent or other proceeds actually collected by it as a result of re-letting against any amounts due from Lessee hereunder. In the event Lessor elects to terminate this lease, it may recover, in addition to the rent which has accrued as of the time of termination, the worth at the time of the award of the amount of rent for the balance of the term after termination, less the amount of such rental loss which Lessee proves could have been or could reasonably be avoided.
- (c) Lessee shall pay all expenses incurred by Lessor in recovering possession of the premises and re-letting or attempting to re-let the same and all costs, including attorney's fees, incurred by Lessor in exercising any remedy provided herein or in enforcing Lessee's obligations hereunder as a result of litigation or otherwise.
- 14. Rules and Regulations. You shall comply with all rules and regulations (attachment) which govern the building and any part of its property, and any alterations or changes in the rules and regulations which we, in our discretion, may adopt for the building. You covenant and agree that all rules and regulations continued in this Lease and those which may be adopted later by us and made known to you have the same force and effect as covenants of the lease, and you covenant and agree that you family and visitors will observe all such rules and regulations. In addition, we reserve the right to alter, amend, or modify these rules and regulations, and you agree to abide by any alterations, amendments or modifications.
- 15. <u>Subordination.</u> This Agreement shall, without further act on the part of Lessee, be subject and subordinate to the lien of any mortgage and/or deed of trust or other encumbrance which may now exist upon, or which may hereafter be placed by Lessor upon the premises or property including the premises.
- 16. <u>Waiver.</u> The waiver by Lessor of any breach of any term, covenant or condition herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other time, covenant or condition therein contained. The subsequent acceptance of rent hereunder by Lessor shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach by Lessee of any term, covenant or condition of this lease, other than the failure of Lessee to pay the particular rental so accepted, regardless of Lessor's knowledge of such preceding breach at the time of acceptance of such rent.
- 17. <u>Possession.</u> Failure to deliver possession of the premises at the time herein agreed upon shall not subject Lessor to liability for damage beyond the amount of the deposit received from Lessee.

- 18. Auto Parking (if applicable). It is expressly understood and agreed that the assigned parking space at said premises is limited to private passenger vehicles and Lessee shall have no right to store any vehicles, boats or trailers or ANY other property on said parking space without written consent of Lessor. Car repairs, washing or painting are not permitted anywhere on the property. Lessee hereby grants to Lessor the undisputed right, with ten (10) days notice, to remove any vehicle from parking space which is inoperable in Lessor's opinion, and remains inoperable for ten (10) consecutive days. Lessee further agrees that any vehicle owned by Lessee remaining on the property after the termination of this Agreement may be immediately removed with full immunity from damages for such removal, on the part of the Lessor. Lessor shall not park, or allow anyone else to park, in any other space on Lessor's property. Lessee shall not assign or sublet any such parking space and Lessor may have unauthorized vehicles towed away. Upon ten (10) days written notice to Lessee, Lessor may terminate Lessee's parking privilege or change the size and/or location of Lessor's parking space.
- 19. <u>Lessor's Representative (if applicable).</u> Should the above premises be under the control of a resident manager, in that event Lessor appoints the resident manager as its duly authorized agent to manage the premises and to act for the purposes of services of process and for the purpose of receiving and receipting for all notices and demands.
- 20. <u>Attorney's Fees.</u> In the event a suit shall arise relating to the terms and conditions contained in this lease or the breach thereof, the losing party shall pay to the prevailing party reasonable attorneys fees which shall be fixed by the Court.
- 21. **Keys and Entry.** Lessee shall at all times provide Lessor with a key to all locks on the premises. Lessee shall allow Lessor or Lessor's representatives access to the unit for the purposes of making repairs or to inspect the unit, to show the unit to prospective tenants, purchasers, workmen or contractors.

Date:	By:		
Owner or Agent fo	or Owner, "Lessor"		
Date:	By:		
Tenant "Lessee"			

### 3.2.2.3 Rules and Regulations

### The Western Ave. Apartments RULES AND REGULATIONS (Attachment #1)

These rules and regulations are a binding part of your lease. A violation of any of these rules may be considered a failure to honor our lease obligations, and consequently, you may be considered in default and subject to legal action under the lease and the law.

- 1. **RENTAL PAYMENT** Rent is due on or before the first day of each month. Checks should be made payable to the management company for the full amount of rent. Failure to pay all rent will expose all tenants in the apartment to eviction proceedings, and consequently, you will be subject for payment of Landlord's legal costs and fees. Please make arrangements well in advance to see that rent is paid in a timely manner. Rent is preferred in the form of a check or money order. Also, please be sure that your apartment number is clearly written on your check to help us properly credit your rent.
- 2. **PARTIES AND EXCESSIVE NOISE** Be forewarned: The Landlord will vigorously enforce all Lease provisions with regard to excessive noise and parties. You are bound by you lease to be responsible for the behavior of your guests and to respect the rights of other tenants at The Western Ave. Apartments. After 10:00pm is considered quiet time. Again, you are responsible for the behavior of yourselves and your guests. If you have guests/a party and it causes any disturbance which is too big, uncontrollable, or disturbing others, management and/or the police will shut it down. Any violations of the party and noise provision of the lease will result in

written warnings being sent to the tenants and their guarantors. More than one written complaint for noisy behavior may be considered grounds for eviction. Likewise, if you find that you are disturbed or bothered by the behavior of other tenants, and you have failed in your attempts to remedy the situation, please contact management and/or the police to allow us to address the situation. All complaints made to management will be held confidentially.

- 3. **ILLEGAL USE OF PREMISES** All residents agree not to engage in or permit unlawful activities. This includes under age drinking and illegal drug related activities in the apartment, hallways, common areas, or grounds.
- 4. **ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES ON THE GROUNDS** Alcoholic beverages shall not be consumed on the grounds, in the hallways, or in the common areas of The Western Ave. Apartments.
- 5. **SMOKING** Smoking is NOT permitted in common areas of the property.
- 6. **GARBAGE AND RECYCLING** All trash must be disposed of properly in the trash chutes or dumpsters conveniently around the property. It is mandatory to recycle in The Western Ave. Apartments. Recycling collection sites are located adjacent to each dumpster for newspaper, glass, cardboard, and metal cans. Glass and cans must be rinsed out. Each apartment has been provided with one recycling bin. Any bin that is not left at the end of the tenancy will be charged against your security deposit.
- 7. **LITTERING** -Residents and guests shall not litter the common areas or grounds of the complex. Personal property (bicycles, strollers, etc.), may not be left in the hallways or chained to trees, etc. Such items may be considered abandoned and disposed of by the management.
- 8. **BALCONIES AND YARDS** Residents shall not store garbage on their balconies or yards. Residents shall not hang laundry outside. For safety reasons, please do not hang or place plants directly on top of balcony railings. All yards and balconies must be kept neat and clean.
- 9. **SERVICE REQUESTS** All service and maintenance requests will be handled as promptly as possible. Please submit all service requests in writing by email or in the office mailbox. Requests should not be made directly to the maintenance staff, as this will upset the system we have in place to best serve our residents. If you have an emergency maintenance request after or before office hours, please contact our emergency number. Feel free to use this number anytime you are unable to contact the office with an emergency. Our answering service person will take your name, telephone number, and apartment number and relay your request to the maintenance personnel. Please do not use the emergency number for routine matters.
- 10. **KEYS** Lost keys will be replaced at a cost of \$15.00 each. Occasionally, a resident may wish to have his/her lock changed, the charge for this is \$25.00. If you get locked out of your apartment during normal business hours, we will be happy to open the door at no charge as soon as possible. After normal business hours and on weekends there is limited lockout service available. Monday through Friday between 4:00pm and 9:00pm, and on weekends/Holidays between 9:00am and 4:00pm, lockout service is available for a charge of \$35.00. Monday through Friday between 9:00pm and 9:00am, and on weekends/Holidays between 4:00pm and 9:00am, lockout service is available through our locksmith only and the charge is \$75.00.

### 11. PARKING -

- A. All vehicles must be parked in a designated parking space.
- B. Any vehicle parked in a non-designated area, such as the fire lane, or in front of a dumpster will be towed at the vehicle owner's expense without further notice. If a permit has been issued to that car, it may be revoked and all parking privileges suspended.

- C. Any resident car, with or without a resident sticker, parked in such a space will be towed at the vehicle owner's expense.
- D. Only vehicles with valid Western Ave. Apartment Parking Permits may park in resident parking areas. Cars parked without permits are subject to towing at the vehicle owner's expense.
- E. All permits remain the property of The Western Ave. Apartments. The landlord reserves the sole right to revoke any permit from any tenant not observing the parking regulations.
- F. No repairs (including washing of cars and changing oil) may be done to vehicles anywhere on The Western Ave. Apartment's property.
- G. No double parking (end to end) is allowed anywhere.
- H. All vehicles must be registered and insured
- 12. **SMOKE DETECTORS** All smoke detectors have been checked to ensure that they are working when a tenancy begins. Residents agree to notify management in the event there is any problem with either the smoke detector and/or emergency lighting/smoke detectors in the common hallway. If we find a smoke detector vandalized, or removed, the tenant will be charged \$50.00 plus the cost of materials for putting the smoke detector back into working order. Smoke detectors and other fire safety equipment are provided for your safety as well as the safety of others. We reserve the right to prosecute to the full extent of the law in the event you or your guests vandalize any fire safety equipment. We reserve the right to check your smoke detector when performing other maintenance in your apartment, or at other times during your tenancy. If your smoke detector is found to be not working properly during one of these checks, it will be repaired and you will be charged.
- 13. **MOVING** Moving in and out of apartments is permitted between the hours of 8:30am and 5:00pm. Cars and trucks are not permitted on the curbs, sidewalks, etc. while you are moving in or out, and are subject to towing without further notice. Any damage to the common areas caused by your moving will be charged accordingly.
- 14. **GYM AND BAR-B-QUE** Please see the most updated Rules and Regulations. Hours and Rules will be posted within the complex. NO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES OR FOOD OR SMOKING IS PERMITTED ANYWHERE IN THE PUBLIC AREAS OR GYM.
- 15. **PET POLICY** One small pet under 20 lbs are permitted with management approval. Please see the Pet agreement for rules and regulations governing pets. Any animal found in either the common hallways or on the grounds is subject to immediate removal by a member of RFLA Staff. Any animals found will be turned over to the town or an animal shelter. An animal will neither be returned to any resident, nor to any neighbor. If we have become aware for any reason of an animal living in an apartment without written approval, the tenants shall receive a written notice immediately that they have five (5) days to remove the animal, or eviction proceedings will commence.
- 16. **DELIVERIES** The Management Office is not responsible for any loss or damages resulting from the delivery of residents' packages to the office in the case that the residents are not home. Residents are free to request that packages not be left at the office.
- 17. SALES & SOLICITING All sales and soliciting are strictly prohibited on The Western Ave. Apartments property.
- 18. **DAMAGE TO THE APARTMENT/COMMON AREAS** Tenants will be strictly held responsible for damages in their apartments and to the common areas. You are also responsible for any damage done by your guests. A written bill will be sent shortly after the damage is noticed and payment is expected promptly upon receipt. Further, maintenance that is required beyond usual wear and tear will be charged to the tenants (this includes toilet back ups because of improper use, holes in walls, etc.).

- 19. MOVE OUT PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION OF LEASE Each tenant must realize that moving out prior to the expiration of the lease does not release such tenant or any guarantor if applicable. This means you are each responsible for the actions of your roommates. The Landlord does not differentiate between you individually, with respect to this you are all treated as a group. If you move out prior to the expiration of the lease, you must notify the office in writing and return your keys. You will remain responsible for payment of rent and other charges until the earlier of the original expiration of your lease, or our leasing the apartment to a new tenant who takes possession. In addition, you may be held responsible for leasing costs that may include but are not limited to cleaning the apartment, painting, advertising, etc. If you move out and fail to pay rent the management/owners may go to court and obtain a judgement for monetary damages against the tenant and/or the guarantors of the lease.
- 20. **SECURITY DEPOSIT REFUNDS** Apartments will be inspected for damages shortly after the tenants vacate the apartment. Security Deposit refunds will be made in the name of the tenant/guarantor on the lease, unless we receive a form (available in the office) indicating to whom the check should be made payable. In no event will we issue separate checks. It is important that you give us a forwarding address for the check. Failure to give us a forwarding address may delay return of your Security Deposit. Security Deposits will be return within (21) days from move out.
- 21. **SUGGESTIONS** We welcome all constructive criticism of any policy we may have, and welcome your suggestions for improving the overall quality of living at The Western Ave. Apartments. Please feel free to call upon the Manager with your thoughts.
- 22. **WESTERN AVE. GROUP STAFF** It is the policy of the owners and management to be responsive and courteous. If you feel someone has been rude or unreasonable please contact Lee Johnson at 310-892-2244.
- 23. **CHANGES TO RULES AND REGULATIONS** The landlord reserves the right to change and/or amend these rules and regulations at any time.

#### **GENERAL RULES**

- 1. The gym and bar-b-que areas are to be used only between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 8:00 P.M. This is subject to change per posted signage by management.
- 2. The gym is reserved exclusively for use of residents of the building and their guests.
- 3. Children under the age of Sixteen (16) shall not use gym without an adult in attendance.
- 4. No food may be served or eaten in or around the gym area at any time without Owners/Agent's consent. Refreshments must be served in unbreakable containers.
- 5. No alcoholic beverages shall be served or consumed in or around the public area of the complex at any time. No person under the influence of alcoholic beverages is permitted in or near the gym.
- 6. Running and jumping, "horseplay," fighting, boisterous or dangerous conduct, and/or any noisy behavior disturbing to the other residents, is forbidden in or around the complex or gym areas.
- 7. No radios, record players, or other musical instruments may be used in or around the complex or gym area without the consent of Owner/Agent.
- 8. Residents and their guests are required to be properly attired always, going to and from and in or around the complex and gym areas.
- 9. Residents and guests will place their own towels over furniture when using suntan oil or other lotions.
- 10. No smoking is allowed at the property

- 11. No trainers or professional classes are allowed or are being hired in the complex or gym
- 12. Persons using the gym facilities do so at their own risk.
  - Owner/Agent is not responsible for accidents or injuries during the misuse of equipment.
  - Owner/Agent is not responsible for articles unattended, lost, damaged or stolen within the gym.

### 3.2.2.4 Addendums

The need for lease addendums may arise. RFLA will use standard lease addendum forms for any case that may arise.

### 3.2.3 Leasing Timeframe / Vacancy

The full leasing of the apartments is expected to take approximately six months from the completion of the building.

### 3.3 Rental Prices

The rental rates shall be as follows: Approximately \$1,500.00/month. Utilities will be paid by tenant.

### 3.4 Maintenance and Repairs

It is our goal at RFLA to respond to all maintenance and repair requests with prompt and courteous service. The building and premises shall also remain in Repair requests will be able to be made through the following methods.

- Management office: Requests can be submitted in person at the management office during business hours or a note can be dropped off in the office mailbox.
- 2. Website Requests can be submitted through our website under resident services or emails can be sent directly without going through the website.
- 3. Emergency phone line There will be a 24-hour emergency line in which our staff can be alerted and respond to any emergency call 24 hours/day. Routine maintenance will be done by our on-site maintenance technician and shall include maintaining and/or replacing when necessary the following items.
  - Light bulbs.
  - Lock and door mechanisms. This includes changing batteries in the apartment electronic door systems.
  - Gym maintenance.
  - AC filter cleaning in each apartment.
  - Any common area equipment maintenance that is not maintained by specialty vendors.
  - All common area painted surfaces.
- 4. Specialty vendor maintenance. The following systems shall be maintained and repaired by specialized companies.
  - Elevator systems.

- Fire sprinkler, standpipe, alarm and extinguisher systems.
- Hot water heater systems.
- Solar panel systems.
- Garage gate.

### 3.5 Accounting

Accounting Services: RFLA Staff will keep accurate records of all appropriate accounting

### of operations. 4.0 Services/Amenities

At RFLA, it is important for The Western Ave. Apartments to be more than just an apartment building. We intend on providing services and amenities which will create a unique living environment for every tenant.

### 4.1 Leasing/Management Office

RFLA will maintain a management/leasing office on the premises. Instead of having an outside leasing company who will not maintain an on-site presence, we at RFLA prefer an on-site staff to be available for day-to-day operations and to cater to our tenants.

### **4.1.1 Rent Payment Conveniences**

To provide the most options for tenants, The Western Ave. Apartments will accept the following forms of payments.

- 1. Cashiers check, money order or personal check (personal check not accepted for initial move-in).
- 2. Automatic debit through a bank.
- 3. Credit Card (most major credit cards will be accepted)

### 4.2 Unit Features

Each of the apartments is not more than 350 interior sq. ft. but will offer the following features:

- 1- Each apartment will have a use of teh 4000 sf rooftop or will have a balcony or yard with outdoor space.
- 2- Each apartment is equipped with its own full bath.
- 3- Kitchenette: Each apartment includes a small refrigerator, range, a microwave and garbage disposal.
- 4- Technology package: Each apartment is pre-wired for cable, phone and internet. For a fee High speed internet will be available for immediate use in each apartment upon move-in through an owner installed system but there will also be the choice of alternate utility companies.
- 5- Vinyl Wood flooring for easy care and longevity.

#### 4.3 Disability Access

Western Ave. Apartments will be disability accessible and adaptable as required per the current A.D.A. standards for this type of housing.

### **4.4 Business Center**

RFLA will provide a technology center when able, with up-to-date features. The business center will enable tenants to access a computer with internet access, a printer, copying services and potential additional services.

### **4.5 Internet Access**

The Western Ave. Apartments will provide, for a fee, all residents access to internet upon moving in. We will combine hard-wired internet connections with a wireless system for entire building coverage. Our system will enable tenants to access the internet upon move-in without the standard waiting time typically required for utility companies.

### 4.6 Safety Features

Keeping with RFLA's mission, Western Ave. Apartments will be a community that residents will feel safe knowing that there is locked, gated access to the building in addition to security cameras monitoring the building areas and state-of-the-art electronic apartment keys.

#### 4.6.1 Gated Access

The main pedestrian gate will be locked and will offer residents a keyless access code to enter. Non-residents will use the intercom system to call residents to enter the building. The garage gate will require a remote transmitter to enter.

#### 4.6.2 Security Cameras

The Western Ave. Apartments will be equipped with high-tech security cameras on all entrances and exits and several common areas. This system will also allow tenants to access a camera at the main entrance to see visitors at the intercom.

### 4.6.3 Electronic Apartment Keys

The Western Ave. Apartments will use state-of-the-art electronic apartment keys. These keys will provide advantages for safety and security. It is virtually impossible to duplicate them by unauthorized personnel. In addition, it provides security for tenants and RFLA alike in the ability to check which keys were used for recent access to any apartment.

### 4.9 Gym

RFLA will provide tenants with a Gym when able which will feature amenities that may be used by all tenants and guests accompanied by tenants.

### 5.0 Marketing

RFLA will use a comprehensive marketing plan to advertise to as many people as possible. This will include:

- 1. Website and building signage.
- 2. Local and Southern California advertising.
- 3. National advertising.
- 4. Open houses.

### 5.1 Website and Building Signage

- The Western Ave. Apartments will have a marketing name with a professionally designed website and branding specific to the building which will offer details and pictures of the apartments and surroundings.
   It will promote not only living at the building, but living in Gardena. The website will also be listed in search engines for maximum visibility.
- There will be appropriate and attractive building signage to attract people to the building.

### 5.2 Local and Southern California Advertising

- Advertisements will be placed in well-known and respected online advertising companies such as www.Apartments.com and www.craigslist.com.
- Advertisements will be placed in local newspapers and regional newspapers such when necessary.
- Advertisements will be placed in magazines which cater to apartment buildings such as the "Apartment Magazine".
- Advertisements will be in Spanish as well as English to reach as many people as possible.
- Local businesses will be contacted by mailings or flyers.

### 5.3 National Advertising

In anticipation of housing needs of people moving to the Gardena area from around the country, we will advertise in some online national advertising companies.

### 5.4 Open House

We will conduct open house during the initial six-month period and whenever needed. In addition to specific open houses we will have the Leasing/Management office open during the week for tours of the property.